
SWEET HOME SCHOOL DISTRICT #55 
Sweet Horne, Oregon 

SC HOOL OESTIHCT•~~ 
SCHOOL BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

To view live board meeting please visit the Sweet Home District website: sweethome.k12.or.us and click You Tube link 

District Office Conference Room September 11, 2023, 6:30 p.m. 

1. Call the meeting to order/pledge J. Redick Action 

2. Agenda approval/changes J. Redick Action 

3. Public Comments Information 

4. Student & Personnel Reports/Comments 
A. Certified & Classified Representatives Presidents 
B. Superintendent's Report T. Martin Information 

1. Enrollment 

2. Strategic Plan Progress 

A. Pillar 1 - OUTSTANDING ACHIEVEMENT-Professional Development 8. Riggs 

B. Pillar 2 - THRIVING CITIZEN 

C. Pillar 3 - THRIVING COMMUNITY - SHOWCASE-Donation Ken Collins 

D. Pillar 4 - SAFE AND WELCOMING FACILITIES AND SERVICE J. Darwood 

5. Consent Agenda J. Redick ALL Action 
A. Approve minutes from the August 14 2023 School Board Meeting 
B. Approve money donation from SHOWCASE 
C. Declare as surplus; 1997 Chevy Suburban; Maintenance Chevy Van 159 
D. Accept donation of school supplies from Fir Lawn Lutheran Church 
E. Approve hire of Karen Nichols, Spanish Teacher at the High School for the 2023-2024 

school year 
F. Approve hire of Sheila Cremer, BLS Transition Teacher at the the High School for the 

2023-2024 school year 
G. Approve hire of Emili Riggs, PE Teacher at Oak Heights Elementary for the 2023-2024 

school year 
H. Approve hire of Guy Felix, .5 ELA/.5 Social Studies at the Jr. High School for the 

2023-2024 School year 
I. Approve hire of Deborah Stratton, Title 1 Teacher at Foster Elementary for the 

2023-2024 school year 
J. Accept Resignation from Julie Jefferson, 5th grade teacher at Oak Heights Elementary 

effective September 12, 2023 

6. Information/Discussion ALL Information 
A. Budget Update K. Strong 
B. Oak Heights Seismic Information K. Strong/J. Darwood 
C. Budget Committee Vacancies: #1 Holley, #2 Liberty, #4 Cascadia, #5 At Large 

#6 Crawfordsville, #8 At Large, #9 Sweet Home 
D. OSBA Legislative Policy Committee 

7. Action Items J. Redick Action 
A. Board Policies 3rd reading 

AC-AR - Discrimination Complaint Procedure 
EHB- Cybersecurity 
EHB-AR - Cybersecurity 
GCBDF/GDBDF - Paid Family Medical Leave Insurance 
ICB - Religious and Cultural Holidays 

http:sweethome.k12.or.us


IGBHD - Program Exemptions 
JFCF-AR- Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Cyberbullying, or Teen Dating Violence Reporting Procedures 
JGE - Expulsion 
KL- Public Complaints 
KL-AR(l) - Public Complaint Procedure 

B. RESOLUTION #2324-1 Request for an exemption from competitive bidding requirements and use of the construction 
Manager/General Contractor method of procurement fo the Oak Heights seismic renovation project 

8. Board Comments Information 

9. Late Items 

10. Future Agenda Items J. Redick ALL Information 

A. Next Board Officers Meeting MONDAY, October 2, 2023 at 3:30 p.m. Superintendent's Office 

B. Next Board Meeting October 9, 2023 at 6:30 p.m. in DO Boardroom 

11. Adjournment J. Redick Action 



4B1 
SWEET HOME SCHOOL DISTRICT ENROLLMENT 

AS OF 9/6/2023 (an updated enrollement will be handed out at the board meeting) 

K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 9/6/23 6/15/23 9/30/22 9/30/2021 9/30/2020 

FO 28 51 41 44 49 43 49 305 321 339 325 312 

HW 34 so 38 37 49 28 47 283 290 312 279 301 

HO 16 25 20 22 31 19 29 162 174 170 139 135 

OH 38 35 56 39 52 49 48 317 328 317 302 227 

CH 22 23 18 23 18 16 24 144 135 138 134 133 

JH 186 201 387 374 379 353 335 

HS 191 202 183 195 771 651 686 717 669 

TOTAL 138 184 173 165 199 155 197 186 201 191 202 183 195 2369 2273 2341 2249 2112 

Grade K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 



5A 
SWEET HOME SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 55 

Sweet Home, Oregon 

Board Chairman Jason Redick called the regular meeting of the board of Directors of Sweet Home School District 
No. 55 to order at 6:30 p.m. on August 14, 2023. 

Board Members in Attendance 
Jason Redick, Dale Keene, Sara Hoffman, Jim Gourley, Mary Masey, Floyd Neuschwander, Jenna Baker, Amanda 
Carter: Absent: Mike Adams 

Staff Members in Attendance 
Superintendent: Terry Martin; Administrators: Kevin Strong, Barbi Riggs, Brian Brands, Josh Darwood, Todd 
Barrett, Josh Dargis, Mark Looney, Darrin Perry, Nate Tyler, Amanda GaVette, Ralph Brown, Luke Augsburger, Aaron 
Huff, Dare! Bidwell Certified: Michelle Snyder, Deanna Neuschwander; Classified: Michelle Bidwell; Board 
Recording Secretary: Julie Emmert 

Other Attendance: Benny Westcott, New Era 

1. Call the meeting to order/pledge 

Z. Agenda Approval/Changes 
Chairman Redick called for changes and/or approval of the agenda. 

Motion No. 23-59: Board MemberDale Keene moved to approve the agenda as presented. Board Member 
Jim Gourley seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously 

3. Public Comments: Manuel Grajeda· Board Policy Code KC- Getting Parents Back; Rachel Maynard· Regarding 
an employment issue; Question· How does a community of people discuss an employee and express their 
feelings. 

4. Student & Personnel Reports/Comments 
A.Certified & Classified Representatives: Michelle Snyder- Certified Union Vice President• Teacher shortage is 

great but the district is working hard to fill these spots 
B. Superintendent's Report 

1. Directors and Administrators return and secretaries will be back next week 
2. New Teacher Orientation August 21, 2023 
3. District Wide lnservice August 28, 2023 
4. Strategic Plan Progress 

A. Pillar 1 · OUTSTANDING ACHIEVEMENT· Barbi Riggs, Director of Student Learning, 

presented briefly on our curriculum and adoption process. We follow strict 

guidelines on process and content from the state approved lists. 

B. Pillar 2 • THRIVING CITIZEN. Michelle Snyder, HS science teacher, presented on our 

partnership with Western Oregon Medical on the great opportunities our 

students have in working with W.O.M. 

C. Pillar 3 • THRIVING COMMUNITY. Kevin Strong, our Business Manager, spoke to our 

Nutrition Services goings on, and helped explain how things are run and the 

various rules we operate under. 

D. Pillar 4 · SAFE AND WELCOMING FACILITIES AND SERVICE· Josh Darwood, Property 

Services Director, will provide an update on our Annual Statement and Water 

Testing. Also, gave an update on the Oak Heights project and the upcoming 

seismic grant. 



5. Consent Agenda 
A. Approved minutes from the July 10, 2023 School Board Meeting 

B. Approved donation of 210 $5.00 gift cards from Oregon Real Estate Professionals to distribute to all 6 
schools to be used as positive behavior incentives 

C. Accepted Resignation from Addison Reukauf, Language Arts/Social Studies teacher at the Jr. High effective 
August 1, 2023 

D. Approved hire of Ashley Patton, 2nd Grade Teacher at Oak Heights for the 2023-2024 School year 
E. Approved hire of Rebecca Raab, Biology and Integrated Science teacher at the High School for the 2023-2024 

school year 
F. Approved hire of Hannah Humpherys, 6th grade teacher at Hawthorne Elementary for the 2023-2024 school 

year 

Motion No. 23-60: Board Member Jim Gourley, moved to approve the revised consent agenda as presented. 
Board Member Dale Keene seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

6. Information/Discussion 
A Budget Update, Insurance Info both given by Business manager, Kevin Strong 
B. Board Policies 2nd reading 

AC-AR - Discrimination Complaint Procedure 
EHB- Cybersecurity 
EHB-AR - Cybersecurity 
GCBDF/GDBDF - Paid Family Medical Leave Insurance 
ICB - Religious and Cultural Holidays 
IGBHD - Program Exemptions 
JFCF-AR - Harassment, Intimidation, Bullying, Cyberbullying, or Teen Dating Violence Reporting Procedures 
JGE - Expulsion 
KL- Public Complaints 
KL-AR(l) - Public Complaint Procedure 

C. Recognition of Don Hopkins 

7. Action Items: None 

8. Board Comments: Dale Keene shared his experience at the OSBA conference, encouraged other board members 
to look at notes online 

9. Late Items - No late items 

10. Future Agenda Items 
A. New Teacher Luncheon, August 21, 2023 - 11:30 at the High School 

B. Orange Frog Training - August 22 & 23, 8:00 - 4:30 at the High School 

C. lnservice - August 28, 2028 - more details to come 

D. Next Board Officers Meeting THURSDAY, August 31, 2023 at 3:30 p.m. Superintendent's Office 

E. Next Board Meeting September 11, 2023 at 6:30 p.m. in DO Boardroom 

11. Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 7:27 p.m. 

Signature, Board Chairman 

Julie Emmert, Board Recording Secretary 
(This meeting was also recorded and saved supt/board/audio) 



Sweet Horne -
SCHOOL DlliTRlCTN.5 

Julie Emmert <julie.emmert@sweethome.k12.or.us> 

Surplus for Sept Board Please 
1 message 

SC 

Darel Bidwell <darel.bidwell@sweethome.k12.or.us> Mon, Aug 14, 2023 at 3:00 PM 
To: Julie Emmert <julie.emmert@sweethome.k12.or.us> 

We have a couple of rigs that we need to surplus out and then scrap. 
Suburban 156 
1997 Chevy Suburban 
Vin 3GNFK16R9VG10785 
Plate E223665 

Maintenance Van 159 
Chevy 

bad brakes. Can not get OEM on parts and will not put junk yard brakes on. To old and don't want the liability. Straight 
to the scrapper it will go. 

Dare/ Bidwell 
Transportation Director 
Sweet Home School Dist. #55 
541-367-7116 Office 
541-367-7129 Direct 
541-367 -0540 Fax 

mailto:julie.emmert@sweethome.k12.or.us
mailto:darel.bidwell@sweethome.k12.or.us


SD 

FIR LAWN LUTHERAN CHURCH ~ 
W.E.L.C.A. CHECKING 
109 W. HOLLEY RD. -I~~/ ~.3 SWEET HOME, OR 97386 

__ ) $ j,!i8,cJC> 
:e 

r~ualCrltd!tUn\ol'I 
S41.ZS9.1235 • www.linn«>ftu.org 

Mn1l,c. 11 A . S --~ ~o/ - ~~ .~ 
='2.<,4 

Nf' 

http:www.linn�>ftu.org


Does this candidate hold a current Oregon License? yes § n:o~ § 
Does this candidate hold an Out-of-State License? yes 

SWEET HOME SCHOOL DISTRICT 55 

SE RECOMMENDATION TO HIRE 

CANDIDATE NAME: ~d tJ,Jwfv-
POSITION: 

JOB#: 

DATE: 

BUILDING: 

ADMINISTRATOR: 

Is this candidate in the process of obtaining an Oregon License'. yes 

Type of Endorsement: Jf- l Z.. ~mr1 ti I ~ • tJj 
Have three reference checks been completed? yesDno~ 

Effective Date: 8J~/ZozY ()J//y 2-

Other Information: 

Office use onl?J: 
Superintendent review date: 
Board approval date: 

s:/forms/hiring/recommendation to hire 



SWEET HOME SCHOOL DISTRICT 55 

RECOMMENDATION TO HIRE SF 
i 

CANDIDATE NAME: ,.Sb l~ Uem~ 
~ ' 

POSITION: fii5 /i.116:ho,1~ 
JOB#: _____ ;,;~h~ 111115 -1,tke,1 """4.t? 
DATE: B-tz-wr 
BUILDING: 

ADMINISTRATOR: --
Does this candidate hold a current Oregon License? yes § n~o~ § 
Does this candidate hold an Out-of-State License? yes 
Is this candidate in the process of obtaining an Oregon License'. yes 

Type of Endorsement: 

Have three reference checks been completed? 

Effective Date: !IJ2J·2JJZt/ sX/,q;{ yPA,t,, 

Other Information: 

Qffi_ce use onlq: 
Superintendent review date: 
Board approval date: 

s:/forms/hiring/recommendation to hire 



__ 

......... , ____ _ ~ W hhT HU!Vlh ~Lfl.OU.L JJ1~·1·.K.1LT 55 

RECOMMENDATION TO HIRE SG 
CANDIDATE NAME: __ e7 t' I . r ~3 ..c+- s:..___ ____ _ [ ....._____.___ _ f-'----"½-1 ....... 

POSITION: f. ( . 
JOB#: l ( l / - J3 2 l:( 
DATE: 

BUILDING: 

ADMINISTRATOR: 

Does this candidate hold a current Oregon License? 
Does this candidate hold an Out-of-State License? 
Is this candidate in the process of obtaining an Oregon License? 

Type of Endorsement: C m e-r.g..,........... _ r ------el....,, b<'. _ .......,_=--,__..__ =..;.._ ....;.,__i en c ,..:...,/ 11- e--=c....::,._ h , "nJS _____ _ 

Have three reference checks been completed? yes IJZI no CJ 
Effective Date: 

Other Information: 

ce use on y: 
Superintendent review date: 
Board approval date: 

s:/forms/hiring/recommendation to hire 



RECOMMENDATION TO HIRE SH 

CANDIDATE NAME: -----=G=UV--kL...><..Ll;,.,,)G.___ _____ _ 

POSITION: o.«5 ELA • I 0.5 <;.~ 

JOB#: Llf-2~2.~ 
DATE: <l/21 / 23 
BUILDING: SH<JH 
ADMINISTRATOR: 

Does this candidate hold a current Oregon License? y;e:s: § n:o~ ~ 
Does this candidate hold an Out-of-State License? 
Is this candidate in the process of obtaining an Oregon License'. 

Type of Endorsement: 

Have three reference checks been completed? yes [2G no D 

Effective Date: _~.._(2._l_,_/_Zc...3=------------

Other Information: 

Offi.ce use onlu: 
Superintendent review date: 
Board approval date: 

s:/fonns/hiring/recommendation to hire 



POSITION: 

JOB#: 

DATE: 

BUILDING: 

ADMINISTRATOR: 

51 

Does this candidate hold a current Oregon License? yes 
Does this candidate hold an Out-of-State License? yes 

yes 

Type of Endorsement: 

Have three reference checks been completed. 

Is this candidate in the process of obtaining an 

yesDnoD 

Effective Date: q/ ';),LU J2:-~ 
Other Information: 

Office use onllJ: 
Superintendent review date: 
Board approval date: 

s:/forms/ hiring/recommendation to hire 



To Whom It May Concern: September 4 , 2023 

SJ 

I have accepted a leadership position with the Salem-Keizer Public School District and 
officially resign from my role as 5th grade teacher at Oak Heights Elementary School. 

Sincerely, 

Julie Jefferson 

\ S~P - 6 2023 

BY:_ .. 



2023-2024 Spending by Function 

%of 

Function Budget Actual Budget 
1000 Instruction 16,075,745 317,684 2.0% 

2000Support 

3000 Community 

12,837,574 1,924,449 

48A 72,8 14 

15.0% 
16.8% 

5200 Transfers 1,7 0 0.0% 
31 ,104,209 2,314,947 7.4% 

YTD GENERAL FUND SPENDING COMPARED TO ADOPTED BUDGET & YTD SPENDING LAST YEAR 

BY OBJECT CODE 
08/31/2023 

2023-24 Year-to-Year Spending 

Adopted YTD YTD Increase/ as a% of 

OBJECT DESCRIPTION Budget as of 8/31/22 as of 8/3 1/23 <Decrease> budget 

0111/0123 Licensed Salaries 7,248,739 0 0 0 0.0% 

0112/0124 Classified Salaries 5,062,531 390,638 438,795 48, 157 8.7% 

0113/0114 Administrators/Managers 1,846,669 237,220 244,959 7,739 13.3% 

0121 Substitutes - Licensed 317,000 0 0 0 0.0% 

0122 Substitutes - Classified 427,000 50,109 72,078 21,969 16.9% 

0132 Overtime 35,000 1,537 1,433 (104) 4.1% 

0134/0135 Extra Du~ 416,980 3,890 5,365 1,475 1.3% 

0210 Public Emeio~ees Retirement S~s. 1,485,008 56,041 56,365 324 3.8% 

0213 PERS Debt Service 2,322,704 97,153 106,072 8,919 4.6% 

0220 Social Securi~ 1,174,575 51 ,088 56,631 5,543 4.8% 

0231 Worker's Comeensation 148,548 12,226 10,363 (1,863) 7.0% 

0232 Unemeio~ment Comeensation 40,944 1,331 1,507 176 3.7% 

0233 Oreson Paid Leave 86,262 0 0 0 0.0% 

0240 Contractual Emelo~ee Benefits 3,063,000 79,453 86,063 6,610 2.8% 

0241 Tuition Reimbursement - Admin. 10,000 0 0 0 0.0% 

0242 Tuition Reimbursement - Certified 20,000 0 0 0 0.0% 

0243 Conference/Wrkshe Reimb. - Cert. 10,000 0 0 0 0.0% 

0244 Conference/Wrkshe Reimb. - Classif 2,500 0 0 0 0.0% 

0245 District Paid Deferred Come 19,450 860 1,460 600 7.5% 

0249 Personal Choice Enroll Fee 2,000 170 85 (85) 4.3% 

0312/0319 lntructional Services 45,000 0 0 0 0.0% 

0321 Cleanins Services 15,000 1,096 1,168 72 7.8% 

0322 Reeairs and Maintenance Services 55,710 5,229 8,763 3,534 15.7% 

0324 Rentals 8,000 0 0 0 0.0% 

0325 Electrici~ 384,000 43,273 48,547 5,274 12.6% 

0326 Fuel (Heatins) 249,000 7,697 7,930 233 3.2% 

0327 Water and Sewase 245,000 29,811 38,052 8,241 15.5% 

0328 Garbase 90,500 7,0 17 10,664 3,647 11.8% 

033X Other Transeortation 77,850 0 0 0 0.0% 

0340 Travel 38,855 6,091 16,476 10,385 42.4% 

0351/9 Teleehone/Daia Communications 147,800 27,726 20,065 (7,661) 13.6% 

0353 Postase 25,000 2,255 2,970 715 11.9% 

0354 Advertisin~Public Notices 3,500 0 0 0 0.0% 

0355 Printins and Bindins 43,475 0 0 0 0.0% 

0360 Charter School Payments 1,300,000 257,706 282,793 25,087 2 1.8% 

0374 Other Tuition 35,000 0 0 0 0.0% 

0381 Audit Services 33,000 0 0 0 0.0% 

0382/0384 Lesa! & Nesotiation Services 22,500 74 6,895 6,821 30.6% 

0388 Election Services 10,000 0 0 0 0 .0% 

0389 Other Non-instructional Profffech 630,500 110,277 130,291 20,014 20.7% 

0410 Supplies and Materials (incl. bus fuel) 400,223 13,907 30,639 16,732 7.7% 

0412/413 Sueelies Tires & Vehicle Parts 85,000 5,794 2, 193 (3,60 I) 2.6% 

0414 Sueeiies Custodial 133,000 20,158 22,759 2,601 17.1% 

0415 Sueeiies Maintenance 378,500 46,823 59,061 12,238 15.6% 

0416 Sueeiies Grounds 26,000 12,557 4,867 (7,690) 18.7% 

0417 Sueeiies Maintenance Vehicles 8,000 4,880 792 (4,088) 9.9% 

0420 Textbooks 1,970 0 0 0 0.0% 

0430 Libra!}'. Books 14,730 256 2,333 2,077 15.8% 

0440 Periodicals 3,355 0 0 0 0.0% 

0460 Non-consumable Items 293,665 16,213 2,687 (13,526) 0.9% 

0470 Comeuter Software 64,291 10,620 14,363 3,743 22.3% 

0480 Comeuter Hardware 120,295 20,810 5,524 (15,286) 4.6% 

052x/054x Eguiement Acguisition 100,000 0 0 0 0.0% 

0640 Dues and Fees 8 1,080 40,898 47,238 6,340 58.3% 

0651/5 Liabili~ Insurance & Settlements 135,000 111,887 136,783 24,896 101.3% 

0653 Proee!]:: Insurance Premiums 303,000 278,723 329,918 51 ,195 108.9% 

0711 Transfer to Josai 7,500 0 0 0 0.0% 

0712 Transfer to Lons Tenn Maintenance 1,400,000 0 0 0 0.0% 

0713 Transfer to PERS Reserve Fund 100,000 0 0 0 0.0% 

0715 Transfer to Curriculumffech. Fund 250,000 0 0 0 0.0% 
31,104,209 2,063,494 2,314,947 251,453 7.4% 



~ 
<weet Horie MEMORANDUM 6B ) SCHOOL DISTRICT 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Josh Darwood 
Kevin Strong 

Subject: Oak Heights Elementary Seismic Project 

Date: September 5, 2023 

We would like to use the Construction Manager/General Contractor (CM/GC) method of 
contracting for the upcoming Oak Heights Elementary School Renovation project. To do so, we 
request Board approval of the following resolution. 

The CM/GC contractor will be selected through an open and competitive selection process. 

We have successfully used the CM/GC method of contracting for the Sweet Home High School 
auditorium project, the Foster Elementary seismic project, the Hawthorne Elementary seismic 
project, the Holley Elementary seismic project and the Sweet Home Junior High School renovation 
project. 

By having a Construction Manager/General Contractor who is actively involved in the project's 
design, we believe we will get the most value for the money spent on the project and potentially 
eliminate costly change orders resulting from unknowns in the field. 



0 

Sweet Home School District 55 n 7A 
- - Code: AC-AR 

Adopted: 11/12/19 
Revised/Readopted: 12/13/21; 4/11/22 
Orig. Code: AC-AR 

Discrimination Complaint Procedure 

Complaints regarding discrimination or harassment, on any basis protected by law, shall be processed in 
accordance with the following procedures: 

Step 1: Complaints may be oral or in writing and must be filed with the principal. Any staff member 
that receives an oral or written complaint shall report the complaint to the principal. 

The principal shall investigate and determine the action to be taken, if any, and reply in 
writing, to the complainant within 10 school days of receipt of the complaint. 

Step 2: If the complainant wishes to appeal the decision of the principal, the complainant may submit 
a written appeal to the superintendent or designee within five school days after receipt of the 
principal's response to the complaint. 

The superintendent or designee shall review the principal's decision within five school days 
and may meet with all parties involved. The superintendent or designee will review the merits 
of the complaint and the principal's decision. The superintendent or designee will respond in 
writing to the complainant within 10 school days. 

Step 3 If the superintendent was not the decision maker in the previous step, a complainant who 
wishes to appeal a decision reached in step 2 may appeal the decision within five school days 
to the superintendent. The superintendent shall review such decision within 10 school days and 
may meet with all parties involved. The superintendent will review the merits of the complaint 
and the designee's decision. The superintendent will respond in writing to the complainant 
within 10 school days. 

Step 4: If the complainant is not satisfied with the decision of the superintendent, a written appeal may 
be filed with the Board within five school days of receipt of the superintendent's response. The 
Board may decide to hear or deny the request for appeal at a Board meeting. If the Board 
decides to hear the appeal, the Board may meet with the concerned parties and their 
representative at the next regular or special Board meeting. The Board's decision will be final 
and will address each allegation in the complaint and contain reasons for the Board's decision. 
A copy of the Board's final decision shall be sent to the complainant in writing or electronic 
form within B5+<, -~ da y s ofF~1e~t~iillfil&*~~·'~M71r~:;th~_,_-,J>.~------·!PP._. ___ M':,.,.,.~~----~ 1fucflf'dt1tis rncctiu g . 

If the principal is the subject of the complaint, the individual may start at Step 2 and should file a 
complaint with the superintendent or designee. 

If the superintendent is the subject of the complaint, the complaint may start at Step 3 and should be 
referred to the Board chair. 

Discrimination Complaint Procedure - AC-AR 
- 1-3 

0 



0 

0 

Complaints against the Board as a whole or against an individual Board member, may start at Step 3 -aJA 
should be submitted to the Board chair and may be referred to district counsel. Complaints against the 
Board chair may start at Step 3 and be referred directly to the Board vice chair. 

The time lines established in each step of this procedure may be extended upon mutual consent of the 
district and the complainant in writing, but will not be longer than 30 days from the date of the submission 
of the complaint at any step. The overall timeline of this complaint procedure may be extended beyond 90 
days from the initial filing of the complaint upon written mutual consent of the district and the 
complainant. 

The complainant, if a person who resides in the district, a parent or guardian of a student who attends 
school in the district or a student, is not satisfied after exhausting local complaint procedures, the district · · 
fails to render a written decision within 3 0 days of submission of the complaint at any step or fails to 
resolve the complaint within 90 days of the mi!{~inili11!ing filing of the complaint, may appea!1 the 
district's final decision to the Deputy Superintendent of Public Instruction under Oregon Administrative 
Rules (OAR) 581-002-0001- 581-002-0023. 

1 An appeal must meet the criteria found in OAR 581-002-000S(l)(a). 

Discrimination Complaint Procedure - AC-AR 
2-3 



DISCRIMINATION COMPLAINT FoRM 
ifo:/f;°e)t~d:'.111~1@{r,ig'§tµ,4e'i;1s;:'iJ~ffi:'flilier~.¥JJif t.bf'tiliia.B1i}§.JiJ}iyJi!!"fi.Y!_ifiil!~i1i,/; 7A 

Name of Person Filing Complaint . Date School or Activity 

Student/Parent o Employee o Job applicant � Other � ______________ _ 

Type of discrimination: 

� Race � Mental or physical � Age 
� Color disability � Sexual orientation 
� Religion � Marital status � Pregnancy 
� Sex 
� National or ethnic origin 

� F ami!ial status 
� Economic status 

� Discriminatory use of a 
Native American mascot 

� Gender identity � Veterans' status � Other _______ _ 

Specific complaint: (Please provide detailed information including names, dates, places, activities and 
results of the discussion.) _____________________________ _ 

0 
Who should we talk to and what evidence should we consider? _______________ _ 

Suggested solution/resolution/outcome: ________________________ _ 

This complaint form should be mailed or submitted to the principal. 

Diiect complaints related to educational programs and services may be made to the U.S. Department of 
Education, Office for Civil Rights. Direct complaints related to employment may be filed with the Oregon 
Bureau of Labor and Industries, Civil Rights Division, or the U.S. Department of Labor, Equal 
Employment Opportunities Commission. 

Corrected 4/19/23 u 
Discrimination Complaint Procedure - AC-AR 

3-3 

mailto:ifo:/f;�e)t~d:'.111~1@{r,ig'�t�,4e'i;1s;:'iJ~ffi:'flilier~.�JJif


•• 

Q :f e) Home :~hool District 55 7A 
Adopted: 

• Cybersecurity 

{Optional policy. OSBA recommends consulting with yourIT professionals prior to adoption.} 
The purpose of information security is to protect the confidentiality, integrity and availability of district dDll as any information systems that store, process, or transmit district data, and protect the 
i , · , , resources of the district from unauthorized access or damage. 

The rlying principles followed to achieve that objective are: 

l .• rmation Confidentiality: The ability to access or modify information is provided only to 
.-:.:::,_orized users for authorized purposes; · 

2. Information Integrity: The information used in the pursuit of the district objectives can be trusted to 
correctly reflect the reality it represents; and 

0 
3.~-., ation Availability: The information resources of the district, including the network, the 

· are, the software, the facilities, the infrastructure, and any other such resources, are available 
· upport the objectives for which they are designated. 

T_. irement to safeguard information resources must be balanced with the need to support the pursuit 
o • .. · ate district objectives. The value of information as a resource increases through its appropriate 
u e Jue diminishes through misuse, misinterpretation, or unnecessary restrictions to its access. 

This policy[ and accompanying administrative regulation] applies to all staff and third-party agents of the . · well as any other district affiliate, including students, who are authorized to access district data 
computer and communication devices and systems that store, process, or transmit district data. I!POLICY 

c~r~ 
•; :-';CWoi' · ORS 336.184 

ORS 646A.600 - 646A.626 

Children's Internet Protection Act, 47 U.S.C.§§ 254(h) and (I); 47 C.F.R. § 54.520. 
Children's Online Privacy Protection Act of 1998, 15 U.S.C. §§ 6501 to 6505; 16 C.F.R. § 312. 
Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act, 20 U.S.C.§ 1232g; 34 C.F.R. § 99. 
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 42 U.S.C. § 1320d; 45 C.F.R §§ 160, 164. 
Protection of Pupil Rights, 20 U.S.C. § 1232h; Student Rights in Research, Experimental Programs and Testing, 34 C.F.R. § 98. 

u 
3/15/23 I RS Cybersecurity- EHB 

1-1 



· 
· 

' 

· 

Sfll Home School District 55 

0 Cor 7A 
EHB-AR 

Revised/Reviewed: 

II Cybersecurity 

{Optional AR.} 
Throughout its lifecycle, an information system that stores, processes or transmits district data shall be 

te· in a manner that is consider-ed reasonable and appropriate, as defined in documentation approved 
· • a · ined by the [Information Technology Department], given the level of sensitivity, value and 

er · · · · . hat the district data has to the district. . e 
Individuals who are authorized to access district data shall adhere to the appropriate Roles and 
Rabilities, as defined in this administrative regulation. 

RFd Responsibilities 

"Designated Information Security Officer (ISO)" means an employee designated by the superintendent to 
e information security program. The ISO will be a senior-level employee in the district. The 
ities of the ISO include the following: 

0 eveloping and implementing a district-wide information security program; 

2. cumenting and disseminating information security policies and procedures; 

rdinating the development and implementation ofrequired information security training and 
areness program for staff and administrators; 

3. 

4.-~. •_rdi~~ting a ~es~onse to actual or s~spected breache~ in the confidentiality, integrity or 
1lab1hty of district data and followmg statutory reqmrements; · 

5. , ,plement Multi-Factor Authentication (MFA) for logins[; and][.] 

6.d. plementing an IT security audit.] 

"D • , . er" _me~ns a manageme~t~l7~el employee of the _district who overs~es the lifecycle of one or 
m. :.C · of d1stnct data. Respons1b1ht1es of a data owner mclude the followmg: 

1. Assigning an appropriate classification to district data; 

2. Determining the appropriate criteria for obtaining access to district data; 

3. Ensuring that data custodians implement reasonable and appropriate security controls to protect the 
confidentiality, integrity and availability of district data; 

0 4. Understanding and approving how district data is stored, processed, and transmitted by the district 
and by third-party agents of the district; and 

3/15/23 J RS Cybersecurity - EHB-AR 
1-4 



5. p·. erstanding how district data is governed by district policies, state and federal regulations, 7A 
.ontracts and other legal binding agreements. 

"Data custodian" means an employee of the [Information Technology Department] who has administrative 
and/or o erational responsibility over district data. In many cases, there will be multiple data custodians. A 
d · · dian is responsible for the following: 

I. rstanding and reporting on how district data is stored, processed and transmitted by the district 
and by third-party agents of the district; 

2.Q· . ementing appropriate physical and technical safeguards to protect the confidentiality, integrity 
vailability of district data; 

3. ocumenting and disseminating administrative and operational procedures to ensure consistent 
storage, processing and transmission of district data; 

4. pisioning and deprovisioning access to district data as authorized by the data owner; 

5. · Understanding and reporting on security risks and how they impact the confidentiality, integrity and 
availability of district data; 

6.A up data daily; and • 

7.~e email and domain passwords to expire at least annually. 

0 " or the purpose of information security, means any employee, contractor or third-party agent of the 
o is authorized to access District Information Systems and/or district data. A user is responsible 

lowing: 

I. Adhering to policies, guidelines and procedures pertaining to the protection of district data; 

2. •. orting actual or suspected vulnerabilities in the confidentiality, integrity or availability of district 
a to a manager or the [Information Technology Department]; and 

3. Reporting actual or suspected breaches in the confidentiality, integrity or availability of district data 
""e [Information Technology Department]. 

C-tion of Information 

Data classification, in the context of information security, is the classification of data based on its level of 
sensitivity and the impact to the district should that data be disclosed, altered or destroyed without 
authorization. The classification of data helps determine what baseline security controls are appropriate for 
safeguarding that data. All district data should be classified into one of three sensitivity levels or 
classifications: confidential, sensitive and public. In some cases, data could fall into multiple categories, 
i.e., salaries. 

0 
Data should be classified as confidential when the unauthorized disclosure, alteration, or destruction of 
that data could cause a significant level of risk to the district or its affiliates. Examples of confidential data 
include data protected by state or federal privacy regulations and data protected by confidentiality 

3/15/23 I RS Cybersecurity- EHB-AR 
2-4 



0 . 

I 

n 
a ts. The highest level of security controls should be applied to confidential data. Examples: 7A 
s · ata, evaluation and disciplinary records. 1 

C, · 

Data should be classified as sensitive when the unauthorized disclosure, alteration or destruction of that 
d__ .Id result in a moderate level of risk to the district or its affiliates. By default, all district data that is 
n · · • · · "tly classified as confidential or public data should be treated as sensitive data. A reasonable 
le · e e ecurity controls should be applied to private data. Examples: salaries and staff personal contact 
inffim p. 

Dat c a sified as sensitive may be disclosable as public record under Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 
2. However, the sensitivity level of the data can warrant the assigned data classification and 
safeguard security controls. 

Data should be classified as public when the unauthorized disclosure, alteration or destruction of that dafa 
suit in little or no risk to the district and its affiliates. Examples of public data include information 
or broad use within the district community at large or for public use. While little or no controls 

ired to protect the confidentiality of public data, some level of control is required to prevent 
u horized modification or destruction of public data. Examples: board minutes and policies. 

s may vary based on the needs of the district.} 

vices and Applications 

0 District employees are encouraged to research online services or applications to support the pursuit of 
di . bjectives. However, district employees are prohibited from installing or using applications, 
prt · or other software, or online systems/websites that store, collect or share confidential or sensitive 
daJ; • the ISO approves the vendor and software or service. Before approving the use or purchase of 
anJ·s software or online service, the ISO, or designee, shall verify that it meets the requirements of all 
applicable laws, regulations and board policies, and that it appropriately protects district data. This prior 

· s required whefuer or not the software or online service is obtained or used without charge. 

tation 

B 
The [Information Technology Department] is directed to develop operating policies, standards, baselines, 

and procedures for the implementation of this adminis. trative regulations to include, but not 
addressing data encryption, logical access control, physical access. control, vulnerability 

m~ nt, risk management and security logging and monitoring. . 

Violations of Policy and Misuse of Information 

Violations of this administrative regulation include, but are not limited to: accessing information to which 
the individual has no legitimate right; enabling unauthorized individuals to access information; disclosing 
information in a way that violates applicable policy, procedure or other relevant regulations or laws; 
inappropriately modifying or destroying information; inadequately protecting information; or ignoring the 

1 These examples are for IT purposes and may not be consistent with record request and disclosure requirements. (_j 

3/15/23 I RS Cybersecurity- EHB-AR 
3-4 



ex~quirements of data owners for the proper management, use and protection of information 7A rer_es. n 
Violations may result in disciplinary action in accordance with district policies, procedures and/or 
ap, · c le laws. Sanctions may include one or more of the following: 

I. ension or termination of access; 

2. Disciplinary action up to and including dismissal; and 

3.a• . or criminal penalties. · 

E . · • .. · . are [ encouraged] to report suspected violations of this administrative regulation to the ISO or 
to tlie ppropriate data owner. Reports of violations are considered sensitive information until otherwise 
designated. 

C) 

D 

3/15/23 j RS Cybersecurity- ERB-AR 

0 
4-4 



0 
Sp· · 

3 
, Home School District 55 7A 

C GCBDF/GDBDF 
Adopted: 

R Paid Family Medical Leave Insurance * 
(Version 2) 

{Optional policy. This version is designed for districts providing an equivalent plan instead of using Paid 
Leave Oregon.} 

Tµt provides an equivalent plan for paid family and medical leave and does not participate in Paid 
L~gon. This plan has been approved by the Employment Department. { 1} The district will file the 
Oregon Quarterly Tax Report as required. 

ct will make available a notice poster that outlines the requirements and procedures for the 
e lent plan.2 This poster will be displayed in each of the district's buildings or worksites in an area that 
is e essible to and regularly frequented by employees. This poster will be provided3 to remote employees 
upon hire or assignment to remote work. 

EOOLICY 

Legal Reference(s):ORS 657B.210 - 657B.260 0 °I~•--"'" 
E 
D 

1 
{ Deadlines for the district to file an exemption application can be found on OAR 471-070-2205. Application requirements can 

be found in OAR471-070-2210.} 

2 For poster requirements, see OAR 471-070-2330. 

0 3 By hand delivery, regular mail, or through an electronic delivery method. 

3/15/23 I SL Paid Family Medical Leave Insurance - GCBDF/GDBDF 
1-1 



0 7A 

Religious and Cultural Holidays** 

{Optional policy. The district could adopt portions of the policy or make changes to better meet the 
district's needs. If the district adopts this policy, OSBA encourages the district to engage the community to 
determine what the major holidays are in your community.} 
A ~dation for Religious Instruction and Cultural Observance 

The s ct recognizes each student's individual right to free exercise of religion. The district may 
accommodate students' religious or cultural 1 observance, while neither promoting one religion or culture 
o~her nor preferring religion over non-religion. Specific requests for religious or cultural 
a~clation should be directed to the student's teacher or principal [in accordance with Board policy 
I~= - Program Exemptions]. . 

Release Time for Religious and Instruction and Cultural Holidays 

0 
·, , t will permit elementary and secondary school students to be released from school each week 

c · y for religious instruction in accordance with Oregon law [ and Board policy JEF - Release Time 
for Rel gious Instruction]. 

s 

odation of Absences for Religious [ and Cultural Reasons) 

nt unable to attend classes on a particular day due to religious beliefs [ or cultural observance) 
shal 15e excused from attendance requirements for that day. No such absence shall be counted against a 
}:Ede,nt in determining eligibility for educational benefits, exclusion from programs, reduction of grades or 

S J!ll!Jipg Around Major Religious and Cultural Holidays 

Folr~oses of this policy, "major religious or cultural holidays"2 are holidays, observance of which: (1) 
is·· on among adherents of a student's religion or culture; (2) include ritual or worship obligations or . 
pra •· · c · ,hat cannot reasonably be fulfilled during school activities;3 and (3) fulfillment of such 
o · - · s or practices would necessarily conflict with scheduled school activities. 4 

1 An example of a major non-religious cultural holiday would be the Chinese New Year. 

2 Districts are encouraged to engage with the community to identify holidays that are observed by students, staff and community 
members that would be considered major religious or cultural holidays. 

3 For example, holiday-related dietary restrictions may still be observed while at school, but group prayer or ritual hymns may 
not. · 

(\ 4 If such obligations occur in the evening, then there would be no constraints on scheduling such activities during the school 
day, so long as the students will be timely released to engage in such evening activiti.es. '-) 

3/15/23 I SL Religious and Cultural Holidays** - ICB 
1-3 

http:activiti.es


0 

1. ... · :c · oolwide and Gradewide Events. ~chools should avoid scheduling imp~rtant events that by tr"jA 
, . . .. a re cannot be made up (such as picture day, open house, prom, graduat10n, and Outdoor Schu4': () 
, 

· on days that conflict with major religious or cultural holidays that may impact student attendance or 
participation. Such events shall be scheduled on major religious or cultural holidays only if such 

eduling is reasonably necessary to carry out the proper functioning of a school program or course 
dy, to avoid an unreasonable burden on other students, or if such scheduling is outside the 

trol of school employees. 

The district will make a good faith effort to identify major religious or cultural holidays observed in 
e local community by consulting generally accepted sources of information. Students and families 

request that one or more holidays from their religious or cultural tradition be included on the 
ct's list of major religious or cultural holidays under this policy. 

2. Field Trips, Cocurricular and Extracurricular Activities. When scheduling other special events such 
as field trips, try-outs, plays, concerts and major cocurricular and extracurricular activities, staff must 

sider the potential for students to experience conflicts on major religious or cultural holidays. 
_. will inform students and parents of plans as far in advance as possible, so that conflicts with 
major religious or cultural holidays can be avoided, if it is possible to do so without making 
burdensome demands on programs or other students, and otherwise accommodated if not. Parents 
and students are encouraged to communicate their need for accommodation to the school, for major 

Oous or cultural holidays not already recognized by the district. 

field trip approval process will include a question about scheduling and major religious or 
cultural holidays. For a field trip to be scheduled on a major religious or cultural holiday, an 
dministrator must review and approve the request. Administrator approval is also required to 

edule a major cocurricular or extracurricular activity on a major religious or cultural holiday 
. ren scheduling is within the control of the school or district. 

3. Tests and Assignments. Any tests and assignments a student misses because of religious instruction 
or religious or cultural observances shall be given to the student at another time. Teachers shall 

Eide students a meaningful opportunity and reasonable time to make up missed classwork, tests, 
zes, and final exam reviews, and to complete homework due on that day or the following school 
When scheduling tests, staff must consider the potential for students to experience conflicts on 

D
major religious or cultural holidays. Make-up opportunities will not be required of a student on the 
school day immediately after a student is absent from school to observe a major religious or cultural 

day. . 

4. 1 Exams. Final exams are scheduled based on the district-adopted calendar. The Board should 
consider the likely resulting exam schedule and possible conflicts with major religious or cultural 
holidays as they consider calendar options. 

Communication 

The superintendent will prepare guidelines implementing this policy, including a list of major religious 
holidays and cultural holidays, which will be communicated to staff. School staff will be informed at least 
twice per year of dates of major religious or cultural holidays. Parents will be informed at least annually 

() about this policy and their student's right to request accommodation. Information including a list of major 

3/15/23 I SL Religious and Cultural Holidays** - ICB 
2-3 



0 

Cl 
rep· _fol$; r cultu~al holidays will be made availabl_e on the district website. Parents are encouraged to 7A 
co· _ . cate their student's need for accommodat1on to the school. 

The superintendent shall reconsider the scope of this policy and recommend changes to the Board as ne1· f the total number of school days identified as major religious or cultural holidays is likely to 
im • 0 unreasonable burden on the district's ability to schedule important school events. 

Effi () OLICY 

ORS 336.635 OAR 581-021-0071 
OAR 581-022-2050 

OAR 58!-002-0035 OAR 58!-022-2110 
OAR 581-021-0009 OAR 581-022-2505 

3/15/23 J SL Religious and Cultural Holidays** - ICB 
3-3 



Sweet Home School District 55 7A 
Code: IGBHD 
Adopted: 10/12/98 
Revised/Readopted: 11/14/22 
Orig. Code(s): IGBHD 

/;i"'.'-.:'):) 

Program Exemptionsf~ 

.,,~·,~%,-~"3""'"-~ 
[I'li<t~!lli!iil:~Tl!e De1t1~ may excuse students from a state-required program or learning activity for reasons 
of religion, disability~ or other reasons deemed appropriate by the district. 

An alternative education program for credit may be provided. 

When granted, the Board's approval of an alternative is based upon and includes: 

1. A written request from the student and the student's parents or guardian listing the reasons for the 
request and a proposed alternative for an individualized learning activity which substitutes for the 
period of time exempt from the program and meets the goals of the learning activity or course being 
exempt; 

2. An evaluation of the request and approval by appropriate school personnel (the alternative should be 
consistent with the student's educational progress and career goals as described in OAR 

0 581-022-2270 and OAR 581-022-2060). 

Following approval by the Board at one of its scheduled meetings, and upon completion of the alternative, 
credit shall be granted to the student. 

END OF POLICY 

Legal Reference(s): 

Program Exemptions** - IGBHD 
1-2 



0 

ORS 336.035(2) ORS 336,635 OAR 581-021-0071 
ORS 336.465 OAR 58 l-022-2050 7A 
ORS 336.615 OAR 58 J-002-0035 OAR 58)-022-2110 
ORS 336.625 OAR 581-021-0009 OAR 581-022-2505 

Cross Reference(s): 

IGAI - Human Sexuality, AIDS/HIV, Sexually Transmitted Diseases, Health Education 
JED - Student Absences and Excuses 

Corrected 4/19/23 

Program Exemptions** - IGBHD 

0 
2-2 



Sweet Home School District 55 () 7A 
Code: JFCF-AR 
Revised/Reviewed: 12/13/21; 1/09/23 
Orig. Code: JFCF-AR 

Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Menacing, Bullying, Cyberbullying, or Teen 
Dating Violence Reporting Procedures - Student 

The superintendent has responsibility for investigations concerning acts of hazing, harassment, 
intimidation or bullying, menacing, acts of cyberbullying, and incidents of teen dating violence. The 
investigator(s) shall be a neutral party having had no involvement in the report presented. This will 
generally be done by the principal or their designee. 

All reports will be investigated in accordance with the following procedures: 

Step 1 Any reports or information on acts of hazing, harassment, intimidation or bullying, 
menacing, acts of cyberbullying, or incidents of teen dating violence (e.g., complaints, 
rumors) shall be presented to the building principal or designee. Reports against the 
principal shall be filed with the superintendent. Reports against the superintendent shall be 
filed with the Board chair. All such information.will be reduced to writing and will include 
the specific nature of the offense and corresponding dates. 

0 Step 2 The district official receiving the report shall promptly investigate. Parents will be notified 
of the nature of any report involving their student. The principal or designee will arrange 
such meetings as may be necessary with all concerned parties within five working days 
after receipt of the information or report. The parties will have an opportunity to submit 
evidence and a list of witnesses. All findings related to the report will be reduced to writing. 
The principal or designee conducting the investigation shall notify the person making the 
report within 10 working days of receipt of the information or report, and parents as 
appropriate, in writing, when the investigation is concluded and a decision regarding 
disciplinary action, as warranted, is determined. 

A copy of the notification letter or the date and details of notification to the person making 
the report, together with any other documentation related to the incident, including 
disciplinary action taken or recommended, shall be forwarded to the superintendent when 
Step 2 is appealed. 

Step 3 If the person making the report is not satisfied with the decision at Step 2, they may submit 
a written appeal to the superintendent or designee. Such appeal must be filed within 10 
working days after receipt of the Step 2 decision. The superintendent or designee will 
arrange such meetings with the person making the report and other affected parties as 
deemed necessary to discuss the appeal. The superintendent or designee shall provide a 
written decision to the appeal within 10 working days. 

Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Menacing, Bullying, Cyberbullying, or Teen 
Dating Violence Reporting Procedures - Student- JFCF-AR 

0 

1-2 



Step 4 If the person making the report is not satisfied with the decision at Step 3, a written apn71n 
may be filed with the Board. Such appeal must be filed within 10 working days after r1:,.-p 
of the Step 3 decision. The Board shall, within 20 working days, conduct a hearing at which 
time the person making the report shall be given an opportunity to present the "~yort. The 
Board shall provide a written decision to the person making the report within ~Q,1,G werhlng• 

:"."•l~"''i'.'1.Y '.'''.' ;,.'::,, •-; '.4.~,.-..,,..;_,')'',/',:,>"'tt~-,,{~c:;p;:,'"''f '· · 
days !;\Lr~!)!':}P!fel!e ii n1g eelll1'1e!rett of the j.\Jiti~~.by;@e;Bolµ-da!eMing, 

Reports against the superintendent should be referred to the Board chair on behalf of the Board. The Board 
chair shall present the report to the Board. If the Board decides an investigation is warranted, the Board 
may refer the investigation to a third party. When the investigation is complete, the results will be 
presented to the Board. After receiving the results of the investigati?n, the Board shaH decide, ,.i!!,in 20-
.i- in open session what action if any, is warranteft'.A~ffiifil'iaGci.si~ri(:WJii'.Be'riiad61Wit]]il'J.3-0]iiy's'& ~J~J~ ,,_,,,.,,e-~'>""~ ' -•~••-~-•----J.•u--""';,.__..,-.,_,~~•="---✓-~---~,~~,.,.s,. ''"••••->=•.....,•=-• '-•-•0 • 

recei'"'t''o:fthe:'re on. .. ' · ..... P .. ·--··· .. P 

Reports against the Board as a whole or against an individual Board member should be made to the Board 
chair on behalf of the Board. The Board chair shall present the report to the Board. If the Board decides an 
investigation is warranted, the Board may refer the investigation to a third party. When the investigation is 
complete, the results will be presented to the Board. After receiving the results of the. investigation,, the 
f1?~4_s,hA!1~~.ci4~,}?i~~filL~~j~_c:,p~~--s,~~sion what action, if any, is warranted\)½,J:i#l!ldsdi~ionl~ill 
bemadewithin;30'da s ofiecei'tofthef 'ort. , , , ... ,,,"'·· --·----·· , ...... Y ... , ........... P. "·- . "". \m . . , . 

Reports against the Board chair may be made directly to the Board vice chair on behalf of the Board. The 
Board vice chair shall present the report to the Board. If the Board decides an investigation is warranted, 

0 the Board may refer the investigation to a third party. When the investigation is complete, the results will 
be presented to the Board. After receiving the results of the investigation, theB?ard_shall decide, ~·rithia 2-G
tl~ in ope~session what action, if any, is warranted.~"<,'\~firial~ecis1offi'8iU;Bt:Jha\l~wiiliili''3<V<4i:i~Bf 
te~eliit cit:_tlie¼b;cii:H . . 

Timelines may be extended upon written agreement between both parties. This also applies to reports filed 
against the superintendent or any Board member. 

Direct complaints of discriminatory harassment related to educational programs and services may be made 
to the Regional Civil Rights Director, U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights, Region X, 
915 Second Ave., Room 3310, Seattle, WA 98174-1099. 

Documentation related to the incident may be maintained as a part of the student's education records. 
Additionally, a copy of all reported acts of hazing, harassment, intimidation or bullying, menacing, or 
cyberbullying, or incidents of teen dating violence and documentation will be maintained as a confidential 
file in the district office. 

Corrected 4/19/23 

Hazing, Harassment, Intimidation, Menacing, Bullying, Cyberbullying, or Teen 
Dating Violence Reporting Procedures - Student - JFCF-AR 

0 
2-2 

mailto:j.\Jiti~~.by;@e;Bol�-da!eMing


Sweet Home School District 55 7A 
(! 

, ___ ./ Code: JGE 
Adopted: 9/14/15 
Revised/Readopted: 1/09/23 
Orig. Code: JGE 

Expulsion** 

·.'7fi.l'wt"tlP ''Hif''?1i'fJJ{§'ff9;:JfoljffI{f,fl'b'XR.''§§'j'![{jJ:JJoo'io!te"7l{il"ifltdiis0Tfi¥l'ulsi/s~T,i. l-:,.,__,_,,,_~-•-•L:,,;.,.C-UP..>,.:,,'-'-"c.k:,>l'.,;..;_ __ ,_,_...,..___._c.,_,~ .. ......,,l!,'J..~.,..,.a•, ~• ~• ,.,,,-~_,=,;,....._,..,w._"l.,..jo""-"-'-'-"•'i.:~.l/M!.,.,.,2~._,.,_,~~•·-'" ,,.,,,,_,:~':/!..,_.,_,_.,_,,....,;c_f.., 

A principal, after reviewing available information, may recommend to the superintendent that a student be 
expelled. Expulsion of a student shall not extend beyond one calendar year. 

A student may ~hi£be expelled fox 11'11'} ef the following circumstances: 

1. When a student's conduct poses a threat to the health or safety of students or employees; 

2. When other strategies to change the student's ~riµddctbehffl'ier have been ineffective, except that 
expulsion may not be used to address truancy; or 

3. When required by law. 

The use of expulsion for discipline of a student in !!j:ft!\:~ grade or lower is limited to: 

0 1. N onaccidental conduct causing serious physical harm to a student or employee; 

2. When a school administrator determines, based on the administrator's observations or upon a report 
from an employee, the student's conduct poses a tlit~}j'ithreat to the health or safety of students or 
employees; or 

3. When the expulsion is required by law. 

The age of the student and the past pattern of behavior will be considered prior to imposing the expulsion. 

No student may be expelled without a hearing unless the student's parents, or the student if 18 years of 
age, waive the right to a hearing, either in writing or by failure to appear at a scheduled hearing. B,.. 
o. ai v ing ti1c 1igr.tt to a iteming, tftc :,ftldent and pmcnt agree to abide h, tfte .Mnd:ings of a bem:ings ef.6ecr: 

0 
Expulsion** - JGE 

1-4 



n . / 

IV&~l!XJ:~Qfili;bei!:C~~ggg_:fg_~'a:~~~p:gi,~i§11i§':.mi(lf~@'il!'.~;i,1,q1en M'I e!!pttbion hearing is not waived, the 
following procedure is required: 

I. Notice will be given to the student and the parent by personal service3 or by certified mail4 at least 

0 five days prior to the scheduled hearing. Notice shall include: 

2. The Deare ma, e,tf,cl, er ma, delegate ttte ottthorit, te tieeide on mt c,ei,ttktioa to tfte Bl:tf'CfiMendeftt 
or sapctintcndcnt3s dcsigncc, ,wfto nta, tilso act as the 15:cmings offi:001. The district n1a, contract o~t+rr 
ft11 ineli, ifitutl ,,he is not emplo,•ed e, tfte tiiotrict to sepi. e &s !fle boatings effteo1. Tite hoartt\'gs 
officer designated e, !ttc Demd ,,HI conduct !he homing and niH not be assoeiatel!l ,,itft tfte imtial-
ttetions of the building ad111inishzrto1s,,t 

3 The person serving the notice shall file a return of service. (OAR 581-021-0070) 

4 When "certified mail is given to a parent of a suspended student, the notice shall be placed in the mail at least five days before 
the date of the hearing." (OAR 581-021-0070) 

Expulsion** - JOE 

0 
2-4 

mailto:IV&~l!XJ:~Qfili;bei!:C~~ggg_:fg_~'a:~~~p:gi,~i�11i�':.mi(lf~@'il!'.~;i,1,q1en


~&pu½siOO'hearingti•wi:il-be-eenduGted-in-private-ancl-wi:ii-not-be-epen-to-the-general-pubHe-unles!IIJ'rft' 
(\ stu-dent-t>Pthe-smdent's-parent~ell_ueS-!-afl"l:)pen-s<,~ . ~ I.:) 
\ I 

4,----ijln ea3e the parent or student ~~Jfgt~!§.!filigtta3 eliftietdt, ttnelt11'Mt1~!!1:!. the E:11:g}J,~.hcl~gllage• 

~~g,~~~fi.,~~~lii½Wo1it~~~tl;;:~~J~~~~~~~a~}~liJi~~,1l~~iio/g,m~ 
t~'l•,d>t-' ... ~_;,.$ .--,...~ .. '-~- fu· '·-'•-·· -~---·-· .... - 3, • .:.:~~ b~,""'""~__..., ~ -·~--.--•~"""~~-...:,-,.,'.,f,,,-...,.. . -~"-~-~ p . ""--~ ~........,.c.,..... ~-~, 

studenttr!ll'l!!Ettoto; 

5. The student shall be permitted to have representation present at the hearing to advise and to present 
arguments. The representation may be an attomey?-m,tl,'or parent:"ot'fll'~itefs1l'Il The district's 
attorney may be present; 

6. The student shall be afforded the right to present their version of the events underlying the expulsion 
recommendation and to introduce evidence by testimony, writings or other exhibits; 

7. The student shall be permitted to be present and to hear the evidence presented by the district; 

8. The hearings officer or the student may record the hearing; 

9. Strict rules of evidence shall not apply to the proceedings. However, this shall not limit the hearings 
officer's control of the hearing; 

0 
10. ;i',he-B0ard•has-delegated-a11th0Fity>teathe-sapeI'intendent-er-desigI1ee-te-aekls-the-heaI'ings,0ffieeF;-the• 

supeFintendent-ma-y-clesignate-themselP,"Or-a-third-party;-as-the-heaFings-0ffieer:-"Phe·hearings• 
0f4ii.eer-ls-deoision-i&"fina,l,,,,Hewever,-a•deois-iefl-(:)f~the-heal'ingt!"l:rff-teer-may-be-appea:led-by-the-parent• 
0r-the-student--i:f-a:ge-Hl-el"'Elver-to-the•B0ard-f0l"'l'evie-.lkhe-deeisie:n-0f-the-hea-ring&-effieeF"is
appealed-t0•the-Beard•foP-r-ev1ew;'4he-&:aai:ngl!-as-t(;)>the-f11ets-ood4e-00111'i-ngS-&ffieel'l,s-deeisien-w-iH• 
be-submi-tted-te-the-Bo!IJ.'d,;-and~wiH•be-avaHable-iil"identiool-ffil'fll-te-the-Beard;-the-student-!lnd•the-
studentls<parents~aHhe-same4im~its-ne-x+regufo1,.0l"Speemi-meeting-the-Beare-wirl-review-the-o 
hear:ings•offioe1"8'cieoision-and,wtl!-affirm;medify-ol"'reverseathe•deeisi:en~ 

4+,-A B/l.ii\:4~;69~4"~cJJ4mr#ilig,'qtit'.Board review of the hearings officer's decision will be conducted in 
executive session unless the student or the student's parent requests a public hearing. If an executive 
session is held by the Board or a private hearing held by the hearings officer, the following will not 
be made public: 

a. The name of the minor student; 
b. The issues involved, including a student's confidential records; 
c. The discussion; · 
d. The vote of Board members, which may be taken in executive session when considering an 

expulsion. 

Prior to ex ulsion'~f~J"J~tir~~"'"efnl?'-cii>lliti'6~ the district must ffi5'l:i'.i;t~ffe~dent'fBl:a P .,. _ _,_,~.,_.,,,~-~•-.,--....._.....,_,,,,_.,·,=::-,~""-;.i_~l,......P,.,_,_,_=._c,c_=.......,.,.~,..._"",,, .....,..,Jt:J:.}.;.,c,-,.,..,_,,~,M--.,_,, ~ r-o"~-,o,C.~• 

p/µ:~t~~!P,fOP,~se~l!ernative programs of instruction or instruction combined with counseling lm_~ 
~cim~tii}ms·~iifilin'c~.Qllto 8: �ftl@eM stffljeot te elf:t'ttlsteft :ftu IOO:JOf.tB ether !hot! 8. ,te&pens i,otie;r 
'l'iol11!'.ion. %e-di5tri-ekmlskioot1ment-te-the-parent,,ofihe-student-that-prep0sa½s-enltemati-ve-eclneat1on
pregrams-have•been-made~ 

/-,. 

~_) END OF POLICY 

Expulsion** - JGE 
3-4 

http:IOO:JOf.tB


0 

0 

Legal Reference(s): 

ORS 192.660 ORS 336.615 - 336.665 ORS 339.240 
ORS 332.061 ORS 339.115 ORS 339.250 

OAR 581-021-0050 - 021-0075 

Cross Reference(s): 

JG - Student Discipline 

Corrected 4/19/23 

Expulsion**.:.. JGE 

0 
4-4 



Sweet Home School District 55 

Code: KL-AR(l) 
Adopted: 5/11/15 
Revised/Readopted: 3/13/23 
Orig. Code: KL-AR 

Public Complaint Procedure 

A parent or guardian of a student attending a school in the district, a person who resides in the district, a 
staff member, or a student who wishes to express a concern should discuss the matter with the school 
employee involved. 

The Administrator: Step One 

If the individual is unable to resolve a problem or concern with the employee, the individual may file a 
written, signed complaint with the administrator within five working days of the employee's response. The 
administrator shall evaluate the complaint and render a decision within five working days after receiving 
the complaint. (A form is available, but is not required.) 

The Superintendent: Step Two 

If Step One does not resolve the complaint, within 10 working days of the written response from the 

0 administrator, the complainant may file a written, signed complaint with the superintendent or designee 
clearly stating the nature of the complaint and a suggested remedy. 

The superintendent or designee shall investigate. the complaint, confer with the complainant and the parties 
involved, prepare a report of their findings and conclusion, and provide the report1 in writing or in an 
electronic form to the complainant within 10 working days after receiving the written complaint. 

The Board: Step Three 

If the complainant is dissatisfied with the superintendent's or designee's findings and conclusion, the 
complainant may appeal the decision to the Board within five working days ofreceiving the 
superintendent's decision. The Board will review the findings and conclusion of the superintendent in a 
public meeting to determine what action is appropriate. The Board may use executive session if the subject 
matter qualifies under Oregon law. Appropriate action may include, but is not limited to, holding a 
hearing, requesting additional information, and adopting the superintendent's decision as the district's final 
decision. All parties involved, including the school administration, may be asked to attend such hearing for 
the purposes of making further explanations and clarifying the issues. 

If the Board chooses not to hear the complaint, the superintendent's decision in Step Two is final•. 

1 If the Board chooses to accept the superintendent's decision as the district's final decision on the complaint, the 
superintendent's written decision must meet the requirements of OAR 581-022-2370(4)(b). 

2 lftfte Herud eboose to &Oe91"tl t-be ottpcri.n~enftent'o deeil!lion11:o,,ii&c&iokiot'o Hftttl fieetoie& on 'fftc eemp:laiftt, Mu,• 
supcdatondcni's ;aiUen tlecision mast nwot tke :1eqtthemoftb of.9'.ttrR fiGi 022 239O(1)(1,))ff 

Public Complaint Procedure - KL-AR(l) 
1-3 



¥he•B0ar{:hnay-h0hNhe-hea:cing-m-e*eetttive-sessien-if.the-sttbjeemattePqualifieg,,under-@reg0n•lawJ1t ,.. 
~ . J n The complainant shall b,~.~!1J~,rrned in writing or in electronic form of the Board's decision within ~J>~e
working days from the tec'ejpjhea:cing of the appeal by the Board. The Board's decision will address each 
allegation in the complaint and contain reasons for the district's decision. The Board's decision will be 
final, 

The timelines may be extended upon written agreement between.the district and the complainant. 

The district's final decision for a complaint processed under this administrative regulation that alleges a 
violation of Oregon Administrative rule (OAR) Chapter 581, Division 22 (Division 22 Standards), ORS 
339,285 - 339.303 or OAR 581-021-0550 - 581-021-0570 (Restraint and Seclusion), or ORS 659,852 
(Retaliation), will be issued in writing or electronic form. The final decision will address each allegation in 
the complaint and contain reasons for the district's decision, If the complainant, who is a student, parent or 
guardian of a student attending school in the district or a person that resides in the district, and this 
complaint is not resolved through the complaint process, the complainant may appea!3 the district's final 
decision to the Deputy Superintendent of Public Instruction under Oregon OARs 58!-002-0001-
581-002-0023, 

Complaints against the principal should be filed with the superintendent. The superintendent will attempt 
to resolve the complaint. If the complaint remains unresolved within 10 working days of receipt by the 
superintendent, the complainant may request to place the complaint on the Board agenda. The Board may 
use executive session if the subject matter qualifies under Oregon law. The Board shall decide in open 
session what action, if any, is warranted. A final written decision regarding the complaint shall be issued 0 b the Board within 30 da s ofrecei t of the ~'iYekfi:6·7'/iti'lli~ItJtfifi"I~ilif:d't?ili~l36ai-ifi{'eiidlia · ear. Y Y P .•.. 'l7 •••. -·-·· R .... ,,~, .... ~ •••.. JL ..... , .•. -•-·"-········"· ___ g ....... PP 
The written decision of the Board will address each allegation in the complaint and reasons for the 
district's decision. 

Complaints against the superintendent should be referred to the Board chair on behalf of the Board. The 
Board chair shall present the complaint to the Board in a Board meeting. If the Board decides an 
investigation is warranted, the Board may refer the investigation to a third party, When the investigation is 
complete, the results will be presented to the Board. The Board shall decide in open session what action, if 
any, is warranted, The Board may use executive session if the subject matter qualifies under Oregon law. A 
final written decision regarding the complaint shall be issued by the Board within 30 days of receipt of the 
~O:ti:ifil~i$Jappeal. The written decision of the Board will address each allegation in the complaint and . 
reasons for the district's decision. 

Complaints against the Board as a whole or against an individual Board member should be referred to the 
Board chair on behalf of the Board. The Board chair shall present the complaint to the Board in a Board 
meeting. If the Board decides an investigation is warranted, the Board may refer the investigation to a third 
party. When the investigation is complete, the results will be presented to the Board. The Board shall 
decide; in open session what action, if any, is warranted. A final written decision regarding the complaint 
shall be issued by the Board within 30 days of receipt of the Q~]ilf'iiifappeal. The written decision of the 
Board will address each allegation in the complaint and reasons for the district's decision, 

3 An appeal must meet the criteria found in OAR 581-002,0005(1)(a). 

Public Complaint Procedure-KL-AR(!) 

0 
2-3 

mailto:he�B0ar{:hnay-h0hNhe-hea:cing-m-e*eetttive-sessien-if.the-sttbjeemattePqualifieg,,under-@reg0n�lawJ1t


0 

n 
Complaints against the Board chair may be referred directly to the Board vice chair on behalf of the Bi;,,,-· · 
The Board vice chair shall present the complaint to the Board in a Board meeting. If the Board decide, ...iO· 
investigation is warranted, the Board may refer the investigation to a third party. When the investigation is 
complete, the results will be presented to the Board. The Board shall decide~ in open session what action, if 
any, is warranted. A final written decision regarding the complaint shall be issued by the Board within 3 0 
days of receipt of!!\'.it?fuaaiJ:ifmi-appeaL The written decision of the Board will address each allegation in 
the complaint and reasons for the district's decision. 

Charter Schools of which the District Board is a Sponsor 

The appeal of a complaint from a public charter school to be reviewed by the district Board will be 
presented by the Board chair and reviewed by the Board at a Board meeting. The Board may use executive 
session if the subject matter qualifies under Oregon law. The Board will review the appeal and make a 
decision about appropriate action, which may include, but is not limited to; holding a hearing, requesting 
information, and.recognizing the decision reached by the public charter school board. A decision will be 
reachedo;-wifuin-00-day&, in open session, unless allowed in executive session. A final \vritten decision 
regarding the appeal shall be issued by the district Board within 30 days of receipt of tµc;· fompl~iii.ian
appeal. The written decision of the district Board will address each allegation in the complaint and include 
reasons for the district Board's decision. 

Corrected 4/19/23 

Public Complaint Procedure - KL-AR(!) 

0 
3-3 



SWEET HOME SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 55 

RESOLUTION NO. 2324-1 

RESOLUTION GRANTING EXEMPTION FROM COMPETITIVE BIDDING TO AUTHORIZE THE 
USE OF THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER/GENERAL CONTRACTAOR METHOD OF 

PROCUREMENT FOR THE OAK HEIGHTS ELEMENTARY SCHOOL RENOVATION PROJECT 

WHEREAS, the Sweet Home School District No. 55 ("District") acts as the local contract review board for the 
District, and in that capacity, has authority to exempt certain contracts from the competitive bidding 
requirements of ORS Chapter 279C; and 

WHEREAS, ORS 279C provides a process for exempting certain contracts from competitive bidding and 
authorizes the selection of a contractor through the Construction Manager/General Contractor process; and 

WHEREAS, draft findings ("Findings") addressing competition, operational, budget and financial data, public 
benefits, specialized expertise required, market conditions, technical complexity, public safety and funding 
sources recommended by the District were available 14 days in advance of the public hearing on this 
Resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the District determines that the Oak Heights Elementary Renovation Project should be constructed 
using the CM/GC contracting method. NOW THEREFORE, 

The District finds as follows: 

1. The District adopts the Findings set forth in Exhibit A to this Resolution. 

2. The exemption of the Oak Heights Elementary Renovation Project from competitive bidding will promote 
competition and will not encourage favoritism, because the Contractor will be chosen through an open and 
competitive proposal process as prescribed by ORS 279C and related administrative rules, including but 
not limited to formal public advertising of the solicitation, an award made based upon identified selection 
criteria described in the RFP, and an opportunity to protest any such award. 

3. The exemption of the Oak Heights Elementary Renovation Project contract from competitive bidding is 
likely to result in cost savings to the District, for the reasons set forth in the adopted Findings. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the District as follows: The contract for the Oak Heights 
Elementary Renovation Project shall be exempt from competitive bidding and shall be selected by the use 
of a competitive Request for Proposal process in accordance with the District's public contracting rules and 
the process described in the Findings. 

This Resolution shall take effect on September 11, 2023. 

ADOPTED this 11th day of September 2023, by the Sweet Home School District No. 55. 

___________ Jason Redick, Chair 

ATTEST: __________ Terry Martin, Superintendent 



Sweet Home School District 55 
Oak Heights Elementary School Seismic Rehabilitation 

PROPOSED FINDINGS SUPPORTING AN EXEMPTION FROM COMPETITIVE 
BIDDING REQUIREMENTS AND USE OF THE CONSTRUCTION 

MANAGER/GENERAL CONTRACTOR METHOD OF PROCUREMENT 

Before the Local Contract Review Board, 

In the Matter of Exemption 
Request of 
Sweet Home School District 55 
Oak Heights Elementary School 
Seismic Rehabilitation Project 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

ORS 279C.335 (!) requires, with certain exceptions, that all Public Improvement contracts be 
based on competitive bids and, under ORS 279C.375, awarded to the lowest responsive and 
responsible bidder. ORS 279C.335(2) permits the Local Contract Review Board, which in this 
case is the Sweet Home School District 55, to grant, under certain conditions, specific 
exemptions from the requirement for competitive bidding upon the approval of specified 
findings. 

OAR 137-049-0620(1), allows the Local Contract Review Board to exempt a Public 
Improvement contract from the requirements to be competitively bid, provided written findings 
supporting the use of non-competitive bid process show compliance with OAR 137-049-0600 
to 137-049-0690 and applicable statute. 

The hearing for review of these findings will be held 
at 6:30 PM on September 11, 2023, at the Sweet Home School District 55 Office located at 
1920 Long Street, Sweet Home, OR 97386, as published in the public notice section in the 
Daily Journal of Commerce on August 23, 2023, and The New Era on August 23, 2023. 

Article I. BACKGROUND 

Sweet Home School District 55 received a $2.S million grant through Oregon's Seismic 
Rehabilitation Grant program. The purpose of the grant is to seismically retrofit the Oak 
Heights Elementary School buildings to meet or exceed the code requirements outlined in 
ASCE 41-17. It was determined during the initial grant application that the building would be 
renovated during the rehabilitation work as permitted by budget. All renovated areas will 
increase Life and Safety elements. The District will also utilize other funding sources for the 
project. The total project value is estimated to be $3.1 million. 

This Project is limited to the funding outlined in the grant package, additional funding is not 
available. The current budget does not reflect a contingency typically allotted for a project of 
this size and scope. It is the recommendation of Sweet Home School District 55 to procure the 
Project using the CM/GC contracting methodology. ORS 279C.332(3) identifies the CM/GC 
methodology as an alternative contracting method under ORS 279C.335, which allows a 
contracting agency to procure construction related services that include, among other things 
listed in ORS 279C.332(3), a construction manager/general contractor (a) functioning as a 
member of a project team that includes the Sweet Home School District 55, the Project 

Page I of5 



Sweet Home School District 55 
Oak Heights Elementary School Seismic Rehabilitation 

Architect or Engineer and other consultants, (b) reviewing and analyzing the project design in 
order to suggest changes to minimize potential errors, delays, unexpected costs and other 
problems during construction, ( c) estimating construction, materials, labor and other costs for 
the Project, ( d) establishing a fixed price, a guaranteed price or other maximum price for the 
Project, (e) constructing portions of the Project and subcontracting portions to other 
contractors, and (f) coordinating and overseeing the construction process. In this Project, the 
CM/GC contract allows the Sweet Home School District 55 to bring the General Contractor 
on board during the initial design phase providing value engineering services and a Guaranteed 
Maximum Price during the design phase in lieu of during the bid phase after full design 
documents have been established. 

The Sweet Home School District 55 proposes utilizing the Construction Manager/General 
Contractor contract delivery methodology to obtain proposals for the Oak Heights 
Elementary School Seismic Rehabilitation Project. 

The exempted procurement process for this Project includes the following: 

1) A Request for Proposals (RFP) process pursuant to OAR 137-049-0640 to procure a 
CM/GC contract with a general contractor. 

Article II. FINDINGS REGARDING PROCUREMENT OF CM/GC SERVICES 

ORS 279C.335(2) requires that an agency make certain findings as part of exempting public 
improvement contracts or classes of public improvement contracts from competitive bidding, 
as is the case with the procurement of CM/GC services. Pursuant to ORS 279C.330(2), the 
term "findings" as used in ORS 279C.335(2) means "the justification for a conclusion that a 
contracting agency, in seeking an exemption from the competitive bidding requirement of ORS 
279C.335(1), reaches based on the considerations set forth in ORS 279C.335(2). Those 
required findings, generally defined as "findings regarding competition" and ','findings 
regarding significant cost savings", are addressed below. 

A. Findings Regarding Competition 

ORS 279C.335(2) (a) requires an agency to find that: "It is unlikely that the exemption will 
encourage favoritism in the awarding of public improvement contractors or substantially 

diminish competition for public improvement contracts. " 

The Sweet Home School District 55 finds that selecting the contractor through an exempted 
competitive proposal selection process in accordance with OAR 125-249-0620 and 125-249-
0630 will not inhibit competition or encourage favoritism. This finding is supported by the 
following facts: 

1) The proposed CM/GC alternative contract delivery methodology is a competitive 
proposal process that allows the Sweet Home School District 55 to select a firm to 
Seismically Rehabilitate Oak Heights Elementary School at the best possible value. 
Simple price competition is not feasible due to technical complexity associated with a 
seismic rehabilitation Project of this nature. The technical complexity of the 

Page 2 ofS 



Sweet Home School District 55 
Oak Heights Elementary School Seismic Rehabilitation 

installation of certain structural systems within the rehabilitation plan lends it to 
specialized contractors with knowledge of these systems. 

2) The CM/GC contractor will be selected through an open and competitive proposal 
process as prescribed by ORS 279C.400 to 410 and related administrative rules, 
including but not limited to formal public advertising of the solicitation, an award 
made based upon identified selection criteria described in the RFP, and an 
opportunity to protest any such award. 

B. Findings Regarding Significant Cost Savings 

ORS 279C.335(2)(b) requires an agency to find that "Awarding a public improvement 
contract under the exemption will result in substantial cost savings to the public 

contracting agency. " 

This finding is supported by the following facts: 

1) How many persons are available to bid: There are limited qualified specialized 
contractors to perform the scope of work associated with this Project. 

2) The construction budget and the projected operating costs for the completed public 
improvement: Limited or no additional funding is available for the Oak Heights 
Elementary School Seismic Rehabilitation Project above and beyond the awarded 
grant funding.source. 

3) Public benefits that may result from granting the exemption: Utilization of the 
CM/GC contract delivery process will allow the Sweet Home School District 55 to 
deliver the most comprehensive project for the allotted funding. 

4) Whether value engineering techniques may decrease the cost of the public 
improvement: This work integrates specialized equipment and personnel to properly 
install certain items of the rehabilitation. A requirement to competitively bid this type 
of work would create additional expenses and lead to uncertainty regarding the 
installation of said items. 

5) The cost and availability of specialized expertise that is necessary for the public 
improvement: An exemption from competitive bidding will allow the Sweet Home 
School District 55 to take advantage of specialized general contractors 
knowledgeable in the rehabilitation of existing structures and value engineering the 
Project during the design phase. This will allow Sweet Home School District 55 to 
be provided with the best value and potentially eliminate costly change orders 
resulting from unknowns in the field. -

6) Any likely increases in public safety: There are currently concerns with public safety 
during the scheduled work as Oak Heights Elementary School Seismic 
Rehabilitation will remain functional during the proposed work. The CM/GC will 
assist with the development of a safety plan. 

Page 3 of5 



Sweet Home School District 55 
Oak Heights Elementary School Seismic Rehabilitation 

7) Whether granting the exemption may reduce risks to the contracting agency, the state 
agency or the public that are related to the public improvement: Risks associated with 
contract overruns, schedule increases and unqualified contracts are greatly reduced 
with the granting of the exemption to competitive bidding. 

8) Whether granting the exemption will affect the sources of funding for the public 
improvement: Granting the exemption will not affect funding sources for Oak 
Heights Elementary School Seismic Rehabilitation. 

9) Whether granting the exemption will better enable the contracting agency to control 
the impact that market conditions may have on the cost of and time necessary to 
complete the public improvement: The specialty products, services and supplies 
needed under this contract are not particularly impacted by market conditions. 

I 0) Whether granting the exemption will better enable the contracting agency to address 
the size and technical complexity of the public improvement: Implementation of this 
Project involves a number of issues of technical complexity. Special skills and 
expertise are needed for optimizing the related foundation strengthening and the · 
seismic strengthening and element installation. 

11) Whether the public improvement involves new construction or renovates or remodels 
an existing structure: The public improvement of Oak Heights Elementary School 
will renovate and seismically rehabilitate the building. 

12) Whether the public improvement will be occupied or unoccupied during construction: 
The public improvement will occur while the building is occupied by summer staff. 
Parts of the Project may occur during normal school hours while students are in 
classes. 

13) Whether the public improvement will require a single phase of construction work or 
multiple phases of construction work to address specific project conditions: It is the 
intent of Sweet Home School District 55 to construct the Project under a single 
phase of the Project. 

14) Whether the contracting agency or state agency has, or has retained under contract, 
and will use contracting agency or state agency personnel, consultants and legal 
counsel that have necessary expertise and substantial experience in alternative 
contracting methods to assist in developing the alternative contracting method that the 
contracting agency or state agency will use to award the public improvement contract 
and to help negotiate, administer and enforce the terms of the public improvement 
contract: Sweet Home School District 55 will enlist the assistance of ZCS 
Engineering and Architecture as the Project Manager to assist with the enforcement 
of the terms of the scope of work associated with the public improvement contract. 
Sweet Home School District 55 will enlist Dunn Carney LLP to assist the District 
with legal r;ounsel and legal enforcement of the public improvement contract. 

Page 4 ofS 



Sweet Home School District 55 
Oak Heights Elementary School Seismic Rehabilitation 

Article III. SUMMARY 

Use of the CM/GC method of contracting for the Oak Heights Elementary School Seismic 
Rehabilitation is an appropriate use of the alternative contracting method under OAR 13 7-
049-0620. Additionally, an exemption from competitive bidding requirements is justified 
under the criteria outlined in ORS 279C.330, findings have been developed in compliance with 
ORS 279C.335(2), and the Sweet Home School District 55 will perform the post project 
evaluation required by ORS 279C.355. Based upon previously listed findings, the Sweet 
Home School District 55 specifically concludes that: 

1) It is unlikely the exemption will encourage favoritism in the awarding of public 
contracts or substantially diminish competition for public contracts; and 

2) The exemption will result in substantial cost savings to the affected Sweet Home 
School District 55 for the services provided. 

The Sweet Home School District 55 submits that this Request meets all of the criteria above 
and requests approval of this Exemption. If you have any questions, please call Kevin Strong 
at (541) 367-7122. 

Page S of5 


	Structure Bookmarks
	Mn1l,c. 11 A . S 


